
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 6 February 2023 

Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Constitution 
Committee  

     
 

 

Tuesday, 14 February 2023 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's Hill, 

Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Mark Whittington, Cabinet Member for Waste Services and Climate 
Change (Chairman) 
Councillor Breda-Rae Griffin (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor David Bellamy, Councillor Paul Fellows, Councillor Susan Sandall, 
Councillor Ian Stokes and Vacancy (Alliance SK) 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, 
 via the SKDC Public-I Channel 

 

 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 5 December 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 8) 

4.   Updates on Actions from the previous meeting 
 

(Page 9) 

5.   Amendments to the Constitution 
To consider a number of proposed amendments to the Council’s Constitution. 
 

(Pages 11 - 28) 

6.   Committee Report Template 
Verbal update to be given. 
 

 

7.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://southkesteven.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Meeting of the 
Constitution Committee 
 
Monday, 5 December 2022,  
10.30 am 

 
 

 
 

Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor David Bellamy 
Councillor Paul Fellows 
Councillor Susan Sandall 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
 
Officers  
 
Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer 
Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer 
Lucy Bonshor, Democratic Officer 
 

 
Election of Chairman 
 
In accordance with the Constitution, as both the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the 
Committee were not present, Members were asked to nominate a Chairman for the 
meeting.  It was proposed, seconded and AGREED that Councillor Bellamy would be 
Chairman for this meeting only. 
 

COUNCILLOR DAVID BELLAMY IN THE CHAIR 
 

16. Membership and apologies for absence 
 

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Breda Rae Griffin, Ian 
Stokes and Mark Whittington. 
 
Councillor Ashley Baxter filled the AllianceSK Group’s vacancy on the Committee. 
 
A question was asked about why the Chairman and Vice-Chairman were not in 
attendance.  It was confirmed that the Vice-Chairman was ill and it was understood 
that the Chairman had another engagement. 

 
17. Disclosure of interests 

 
None disclosed. 

 
18. Minutes of the meeting held on 17 October 2022 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 17 October 2022 were proposed, seconded 
and AGREED. 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

 
19. Updates on Actions from the previous meeting 

 
The Committee were notified that a convenient date to discuss proposed 
amendments to the Companies Committee could not be agreed and therefore, the 
action concerning the Companies Committee had been included as an agenda item 
for this meeting.  The second action concerning the setting of meetings for the 
ongoing review of the Constitution were on going. 
 
A question was asked about when the review of scrutiny and the action plan, which 
had been discussed at a recent scrutiny workshop following the Scrutiny Review, 
would be considered by the Constitution Committee.   
 
It was confirmed that the Scrutiny Action Plan would go to the Governance and 
Audit Committee with any specific actions requiring constitutional changes naturally 
coming before this Committee prior to consideration at Full Council. 
 
A further question was asked about why the Constitution Committee did not have a 
work programme when all other committees, apart from the quasi-judicial 
committees had one.   

 
The main item of business for the Committee had been the Constitution review 
which had now taken place, other issues and amendments were dealt with on an ad 
hoc basis. 
 
It was noted if Members of the Committee had any potential issues or amendments 
for the Committee to discuss they could be added to a work programme. A future 
item for the Committee would be how the annual review of the Constitution should 
be undertaken.     

 
20. Committee report template 

 
At a recent Overview and Scrutiny Committee, issues with the current report 
template had been raised.  Questions were asked as to why it had not been before 
the Constitution Committee before it had been implemented.  The Assistant Director 
of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer explained the rationale behind the 
implementation of the new template from 1 September 2022.    
 
A key reason for the template change had been administrative.  Officers had found 
the old template difficult to complete with technical fields and macros, also the 
report implications, such as finance and legal had previously been positioned at the 
end of the document which represented key aspects of the information presented in 
reports to Members.   
 
The opportunity had been taken to re-design the template and to move the 
implications to the top of the document.  The implications covered a wide variety of 
areas and it was for the report author to engage with the relevant officer for each 
area. 
 
The sign-off of the report had also been highlighted and previously this had been in 
a prominent position on the front page of the report and undertaken by a senior 

4



 

officer, director and cabinet member.  It was stated that this was an internal 
administrative process and would not normally be included in a public report.  
Discussions had been held with the Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance 
and Licensing who agreed that this should not be included in the new template as it 
was an internal control process.  Although the signoff process was not shown on 
the report, assurance was given to Members that the process was still followed by 
the Democratic Service Team, but information relating to specific sign-offs was 
removed before the report was published.  

 
Discussion followed with the following points being made. 

 

• Who asked for the report template to be reviewed and why? 
 

The previous template had contained fields and macros which didn’t work correctly 
and there were duplications within the report. In line with how the Constitution 
Review had been undertaken, the senior management team had asked for the 
template to be reviewed and this had been carried out in liaison with the Cabinet 
Member for Corporate Governance and Licensing. 

 

• Some Members felt that the sign off information was useful and should not 
have been taken out of the public arena. 
 

It was stated that there was no requirement to include the sign off information on 
the public report and the removal of the information did not affect the decision 
making of Members as all the necessary statutory information was contained within 
the report. Members had been circulated with a copy of the proposed new template 
at the beginning of August 2022 highlighting the key changes and when it was 
proposed to be used, from September 2022. 

 

• A question was asked about if a Freedom of Information (FOI) request was 
submitted would the sign off information be available.   
 

The information was removed by the Democracy Team before the report was 
published and was therefore not held on file and would not be available to be 
disclosed in a FOI.  Assurance was given that the template had been circulated to 
all Members before it had gone into circulation and liaison had been undertaken 
with the Cabinet Member for Governance and Licensing.  The sign off process was 
an internal administrative procedure and did not affect the decision making process. 

 
Discussion then followed on whose name the reports were in.  Reference was 
made to overview and scrutiny committee reports in Cabinet Members names, a 
recent report that had been submitted to the Companies Committee which had 
been in the company’s name and a LeisureSK Ltd report which had been in the 
name of a director of the company who had resigned.  The Assistant Director of 
Governance and Deputy Monitoring explained about the journey of a report and the 
reasons why it was in a Cabinet Member’s name.  Reports could be submitted in an 
officer’s name and an example of the political balance report which went to Council 
was given as it was in the Chief Executive’s name as the proper officer.  There was 
also the opportunity for chairmen of overview and scrutiny committees to take 
reports to Cabinet which would be in their name.  Following the scrutiny review that 

5



 

had taken place further consideration was to be taken in respect of the name that 
reports were submitted in. 

 
A proposal was made to put the sign off information back into the report template as 
it had been previously.  Further discussion on including the sign off information 
followed with the proposal being seconded.  One Member asked if it was urgent 
that a decision was made at the meeting, 
 
The Monitoring Officer stated that the proposed template had been circulated to 
Members in August.  The new template had been in use for at least two months and 
liaison with the Cabinet Member had been undertaken prior to its implementation.  
Complaints about the template had only recently been made and it was reiterated 
that report sign-offs were an internal process. He also made the point that inclusion 
of sign-off details removed accountability and responsibility of the report writer for 
the content of the report. 
 
As both the Chairman and Vice-Chairman were absent, together with the Cabinet 
Member for Governance and Licencing, the original proposal was withdrawn and it 
was proposed, seconded and AGREED to defer any decision on the report 
template to the next meeting of the Committee when more Members of the 
Committee and the Cabinet Member for Governance and Licensing could be 
present. 

 
Decision 

 
To defer any decision in respect of the report template to the next meeting of 
the Constitution Committee. 

 
21. Companies Committee 

 
The item had been added to the agenda following the last meeting of the 
Committee.   
 
At a recent Council meeting a Member wanted to ask the Chairman of the 
Companies Committee a question during Open Questions by Councillors, and 
although the Chairman of the Companies Committee was prepared to answer the 
question, the Constitution did not allow for this.  A proposal was therefore made to 
allow questions to be put to the Chairman of the Companies Committee during 
Open Questions by Councillors at Council.   
 
A further proposal was made to allow members of the public to ask questions at 
Companies Committee which was allowed with other Committee’s such as 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 

 
Each proposal was taken separately. 
 
The Chairman asked if, like with other Committees, Members could speak at a 
meeting of the Companies Committee at the discretion of the Chairman. This was 
confirmed by the Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer 
with reference to the appropriate Article within the Constitution, Article 11, 
paragraphs 11.4. 

6



 

 
Clarity was sought around asking questions of the Chairmen at the Companies 
Committee and it was noted that following the elections next year, changes may be 
made to the Companies Committee and there may be less wholly owned Council 
companies. 
 
Further reference was made to who could answer questions during Open Questions 
by Councillors at Council and Members were referred to Paragraph 12.2 of the 
Council Procedure Rules which listed who could answer questions and Paragraph 
12.3 which listed those Committee where questions could not be asked of the 
Chairman or Vice-Chairman. 
 
It was stated that the Chairmen of the wholly owned Council Companies could be 
held to account by the Companies Committee who acted in a shareholder role.   
The Constitution Committee could propose that the Chairman (and Vice-Chairman) 
of the Companies Committee be added to the list of Members who could be 
questioned during Open Questions by Councillors. 
 
The proposal to add the Companies Committee to the list of those committee 
Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen who could answer questions during Open Questions 
by Councillors was seconded and on being put to the vote AGREED. 

 
Decision 
 
That the Constitution Committee recommends to Council that the Companies 
Committee Chairman and Vice-Chairman be added to the list contained in 
paragraph 12.2 of the Council Procedure Rules.  
 
The second proposal concerned allowing members of the public to speak at 
meetings of the Companies Committee in the same way that members of the public 
could speak at Overview and Scrutiny Committees.  The proposal was seconded. 
 
Members of the public were allowed to attend any public meeting of the Council, 
unless they had been excluded under Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972.  

 
A question was asked if there was a reason why speaking at the Companies 
Committee by members of the public was not included in the Constitution.  
Reference was made to the quasi-judicial Committees and their speaking 
arrangements but it was confirmed that there was no reason that the Companies 
Committee should be excluded. 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED to allow speaking by members of the 
public at Companies Committees in the same way that the public can speak at 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 
 
Decision 
 
That the Constitution Committee recommends to Council that public 
speaking is allowed at the Companies Committee in the same way that the 
public can speak at Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 

7



 

 
22. Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

Comments were made about the number of Members that were present at the 
Committee and the fact that the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Cabinet Member 
were absent. 

 
23. Close of meeting 

 
The meeting closed at 11:36am. 

 
 

8



Action Sheet 
Constitution Committee – Monday 5 December 2022 

Min 
no 

Agenda item Action Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

20 Committee Report 
Template  

To defer any decision in respect of the 
report template to the next meeting 
of the Constitution Committee. 
 
 

Assistant Director of 
Governance  

Decision deferred 
due to number of 
Members present at 
meeting 

Next meeting of 
Committee 

 

9

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Constitution 
Committee  
 
 

14 February 2023 
 
Report of Councillor Linda Wootten, 
Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Governance and Licensing  
 

 

Amendments to the Constitution  
 

Report Author 

Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer  

  Graham.watts@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To consider a number of proposed amendments to the Council’s Constitution. 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Constitution Committee recommends to Full Council the following 
changes to the Constitution: 

1. The addition of a new paragraph under the Budget and Policy Framework 
Procedure Rules in Part 4 (Rules of Procedure) of the Constitution 
regarding proposed amendments to the budget or proposed alternative 
budgets, as set out in paragraph 3.3 of the report. 

2. The reduction of four Overview and Scrutiny Committees to three 
Overview Scrutiny Committees and adoption of the revised version of 
‘Article 6 – Overview and Scrutiny Committees’ set out in Appendix A, with 
effect from 4 May 2023. 

3. The abolition of the Companies Committee, with oversight of the Council’s 
companies falling within the remit of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, with appointments to company Boards falling within the remit 
of the Governance and Audit Committee, with effect from 4 May 2023. 

 

 

11

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Graham.watts@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


4. The abolition of the Constitution Committee and role and responsibilities 
being added to the remit of the Governance and Audit Committee and 
adoption of the revised version of ‘Article 10 – Governance and Audit 
Committee’ set out at Appendix B, with effect from 4 May 2023. 

5. The creation of a Standards Committee and adoption of a new Article 
entitled ‘Standards Committee’, which sets out its terms of reference, with 
effect from 4 May 2023. 

6. The renumbering of Articles under Part 2 of the Council’s Constitution to 
facilitate recommendations 1 to 4 above, with effect from 4 May 2023. 

7. The addition of a delegation under the Officer Scheme of Delegation in 
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) of the Council’s Constitution 
regarding the introduction of new fees and charges, as set out in 
paragraph 3.7 of the report. 

8. The addition of a definition regarding the duration of a short-term lease in 
respect of an existing delegation within the Officer Scheme of Delegation 
in Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) and further clarification in respect 
of the delegation, as set out paragraphs 3.8 to 3.11 of the report. 

9. The addition of an existing delegation within the Officer Scheme of 
Delegation in Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) granted by Cabinet on 7 
December 2021 with a variation in respect of the disposal of assets, as set 
out in paragraphs 3.12 to 3.14 of the report. 

10. The addition of a rule in Part 4 (Procedure Rules) in the Council Procedure 
Rules regarding the appointment of Members to fill vacancies on 
Committees, as set out in paragraph 3.17 of the report. 

 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

 

 

12



Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no significant financial implications arising from this report. 

 

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 Legal and governance implications are reflected in the body of the report. 

 

Completed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  A number of amendments to the Council’s Constitution are proposed in this report. 

The circumstances surrounding each proposition are set out in the report. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

 Scrutiny Review – consequential amendments to the Constitution 

 

3.1 A review of the Council’s overview and scrutiny function was undertaken by the 

Centre for Governance and Scrutiny and thirteen recommendations were included 

in the final report which was submitted to the Council. The Governance and Audit 

Committee at its meeting on 30 January 2023 endorsed an action plan to address 

the recommendations set out in the report and in implementing the action plan a 

number of specific actions require amendments to the Constitution. 

 

 Review of the current approach to financial scrutiny   

 

3.2 In reviewing the Council’s processes for budget setting, as recommended in the 

Centre for Governance and Scrutiny’s report, risks were identified in respect of the 

submission of amendments to the budget or submission of alternative budgets. 

Late notice of such submissions could mean that the Chief Finance Officer and 

their team has insufficient time to consider whether the propositions are financially 

sound or represent a balanced budget, which is a statutory requirement of their 

role as the Council’s Section 151 Officer. 

 

3.3 It is therefore proposed to introduce a new paragraph 4.2 under the Budget and 

Policy Framework Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution, to read: 

 

 “Any amendments to Cabinet’s proposals, or the submission of an alternative 

budget, must be considered by the Chief Finance Officer five working days prior to 

the day of the budget meeting of Full Council to ensure that proposals are 

financially sound and represent a balanced budget. By exception, amendments 

13



considered as minor which the Chief Finance Officer deems as financially sound 

and representing a balanced budget may still be proposed”. 

 

 Committee structure 

 

3.4 The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny recommended changes to the Council’s 

committee structure in respect of its Overview and Scrutiny Committees. The 

Action Plan endorsed at the Governance and Audit Committee included a 

proposal to change the Council’s wider committee structure, based upon the 

following: 

 

• A reduction from four Overview and Scrutiny Committees to three Overview 

and Scrutiny Committees. A revised version of ‘Article 6 – Overview and 

Scrutiny Committees’ in Part 2 of the Constitution, setting out the names 

and remit for the three new Committees is outlined in Appendix A 

• The abolition of the Companies Committee and responsibility for oversight 

of the Council’s companies to fall under the responsibility of the respective 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee, as reflected in Appendix A, with 

appointments to the Boards of companies falling within the remit of the 

Governance and Audit Committee  

• The abolition of the Constitution Committee and its role and responsibilities 

being reallocated to the Governance and Audit Committee. A revised 

version of ‘Article 10 – Governance and Audit Committee’ is outlined in 

Appendix B 

• The addition of a Standards Committee, with its terms of reference set out 

in a new Article titled ‘Standards Committee’ as outlined in Appendix C 

 

3.5 Articles relating to the Companies Committee and Constitution Committee and 

any other references within the Constitution are proposed to be removed, with 

the renumbering of Articles within Part 2 of the Constitution to accommodate this 

and the inclusion of a new Article for the Standards Committee, as set out above. 

 

Fees and charges 

 

3.6 There is currently no provision within the Council’s approval processes to consider 

the introduction of new fees and charges between meetings of Full Council or 

outside of the Council’s budget setting process. There may be occasions when the 

introduction of a new fee or charge is necessary in-year and cannot wait for the 

next scheduled meeting of Full Council for approval. 

 

3.7 A new section is proposed to be added under Part 3 of the Constitution 

(Responsibility for Functions) under paragraph 3.3.9 of Part 3(c) (Delegated 

Powers to Officers) titled ‘fees and charges’ to read as follows: 

  

 

 

14



Function 
 

Delegation Officer(s) Granted 
Delegation  
 

Fees and Charges To submit a report to 
Cabinet seeking approval 
of a new fee or charge in 
circumstances when the 
introduction of a fee or 
charge is necessary and 
cannot reasonably be 
considered as part of the 
Council’s budget setting 
process  
 
If agreed by Cabinet, to 
provide reasonable 
notice to service users 
before they are 
implemented, together 
with clear advice on any 
discounts or concessions 
that will be available. 
 

Chief Executive, relevant 
Director, Assistant 
Director and any other 
officers they authorise in 
writing as being 
appropriately qualified 
and trained 

 

Definition of short-term lease 

 

3.8 Paragraph 25(f) of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation states that officers have 

delegation “to arrange short term lettings of land not immediately required for other 

purposes at rent/licenses fees fixed by the Section 151 Officer”. 

 

3.9 There is no definition within the Constitution that prescribes or defines the duration 

of a short-term lease. 

 

3.10 Historically, the Council has set a precedent for short-term leases being less than 

seven years. It is therefore proposed that paragraph 25(f) be amended to reflect 

that short-term leases are defined as leases up to seven years in duration. 

 

3.11 Further clarity is required in this part of the Constitution as reference is made solely 

to land, whereas it is considered that this delegation should also apply to property. 

It is proposed that the words ‘and property’ be added to the reference to land. 

 

Disposal of General Fund Assets 

 

3.12 At its meeting on 7 December 2021, Cabinet approved the following delegation to 

the Director of Housing and Property, in consultation with the Deputy Leader of 

the Council, Chief Executive, Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer, to 

dispose of General Fund Assets up to a value of £2 million, exclusive of any 

applicable VAT, subject to legal and valuation advice. 

15



3.13 For completeness, it is proposed to include this delegation as part of the Officer 

Scheme of Delegation under Part 3 of the Constitution (Responsibility for 

Functions) under paragraph 3.3.9 of Part 3(c) (Delegated Powers to Officers). The 

Officer Scheme of Delegation is written in such a way that there is contingency 

should individual post holders be unable to act. It is therefore proposed that 

delegated power be extended to the Chief Executive or the Director of Housing 

and Property. 

 

3.14 It is acknowledged that any Member of Cabinet can be appointed Deputy Leader 

of the Council, whereas the relevant Cabinet Portfolios would be those with 

responsibility for finance and property. It is further proposed that this delegation be 

amended to include specific reference to the Cabinet Member responsible for 

Finance and Cabinet Member responsible for Property as opposed to the Deputy 

Leader of the Council.  

 

Vacancies on Committees 

 

3.15 There is currently no stipulation that vacancies on the Council’s committees need 

to be filled, with the substitute provision able to be used to replace a political 

group’s vacancy on a committee. 

 

3.16 A defined membership for a committee promotes continuity and removes any 

confusion associated with which Councillors act on a particular committee. 

 

3.17 It is proposed that the following paragraph be added to Council Procedure Rules: 

 

“Vacancies on committees should be filled at the next available meeting of Full 

Council and until that meeting takes place the provision of substitutes will be 

permitted. If a vacancy on a committee is not filled at the next available meeting of 

Full Council, the provision of substitutes will not be permitted.”  

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 To retain the existing version of the Constitution, unamended. 

 

4.2 The Constitution Committee is invited to recommend any amendments to the 

changes proposed as part of this report or suggest additional amendments to the 

Constitution for consideration by the Committee. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 Recommendations 1 to 6 reflect actions endorsed by the Governance and Audit 

Committee as part of the Scrutiny Review Action Plan. 

 

5.2 Recommendations 7 to 10 are considered to strengthen the Council’s governance 

arrangements. 

16



6. Consultation 
 

6.1 In respect of the Scrutiny Review, consideration to the draft Action Plan was 

considered by the Governance and Audit Committee on 28 September 2022 and 

30 January 2023 together with a workshop for Councillors which was held on 30 

November 2022.  

 

6.2 No further consultation on the other recommendations contained within this report 

has been undertaken. 

 

6.3 Amendments to the Constitution are required to be considered by the Constitution 

Committee prior to submission to Full Council for final decision. 

 

7. Appendices 
 

7.1 Appendix A – Article 6 (Overview and Scrutiny Committees) 

 

7.2 Appendix B – Article 10 (Governance and Audit Committee) 

 

7.3 Appendix C – New Article for the Standards Committee 

 

 

 

17



This page is intentionally left blank



Article 6 – Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

 

6.1 Appointment and Remit 

 

At its Annual Meeting, Full Council will appoint Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees to review and scrutinise the discharge of the Council’s executive 

functions and the effectiveness of the Council’s policies. The Council’s three 

current Overview and Scrutiny Committees are: 

 

Communities and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

The Committee is responsible for: 

 

• Anti-social behaviour, community safety and local policing  

• Aubers Ridge Management Company Ltd  

• Benefit claims 

• Community cohesion 

• Community funding and volunteering 

• Community right to bid 

• Community well-being  

• Council housing services 

• Customer services 

• Disabled facilities grant 

• Equality and diversity 

• Gravitas Housing Ltd 

• Parish and town council liaison 

• Procurement 

• Safeguarding and individual wellbeing 

• Strategic housing services 

 

 Culture and Leisure Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 The Committee is responsible for: 

 

• Arts and culture  

• Heritage 

• Markets and fairs 

• Sport and physical activity 

• Leisure SK Ltd 

• Visitor economy  

 

 

 

 

 

19

Appendix A



 Finance, Economic and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 The Committee is responsible for: 

 

• Alcohol, entertainment and leisure licensing (Policy) 

• Air quality 

• Allotments 

• Animal welfare licensing (Policy) 

• Budget monitoring 

• Budget setting 

• Business rate relief 

• Business trade and licensing (Policy) 

• Business transformation 

• Car parks, bus stations and town centre infrastructure  

• Charitable rate relief 

• Commercial, industrial and clinical waste collection and management 

• Council-owned property, assets and maintenance (non-council house) 

• Customer access strategy 

• Data protection reporting 

• Dog breeding and control orders 

• Domestic waste and recycling management 

• Economic development 

• Energy efficiency 

• Environment SK Ltd  

• Environment SK Commercial Services Ltd 

• Estate and grounds maintenance 

• Fees and charges 

• Flooding 

• Food hygiene and safety 

• Health and safety 

• Large-scale development projects 

• Licensing (Policy) 

• Medium term financial planning and national funding proposals 

• Noise 

• Performance reporting 

• Public conveniences 

• Renewable energy 

• Review of outturn 

• Scrap metal dealers 

• Shop front designs and funding 

• Street furniture 

• Street lighting 

• Street services and green open space management 

• Town centre developments and partnerships 

20



6.2 Membership 

 

Full Council will appoint Councillors to Overview and Scrutiny Committees, 

the number of which will be dependent upon the size of each individual 

Committee as set out in the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules at Part 4 

of this Constitution. 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees will comply with the political balance rules 

in Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 

Cabinet Members cannot be Members of an Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee. 

 

6.3 Role and Function 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees must conduct their proceedings in 

accordance with the principles of Council Procedure Rules and Access to 

Information Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution, other than 

those rules which only apply to meetings of Full Council. 

 

In addition, Overview and Scrutiny Committees will carry out their duties in 

accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules contained in 

Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 

6.4 Annual Report 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees must report annually to Full Council the 

work they have carried out over the previous municipal year. 

 

6.5 Joint Working of Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

 

The Chairman of the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 

Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee will carry out the following 

functions: 

 

i) To chair a meeting for all Members of Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees to scrutinise the Council’s proposed budget in accordance 

with the Budget Procedure Rules contained in Part 4 of this 

Constitution. 

 

ii) To chair a meeting, when necessary, of the Chairmen of all Overview 

and Scrutiny Committees to determine which Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee, having regard to prescribed areas of interest and existing 

workloads, may most appropriately be tasked to undertake work on a 

proposed item for consideration. 

21



iii) To chair a meeting of the Chairmen of all Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees to determine the content of the Overview and Scrutiny 

annual report.  

 

The Vice-Chairman of the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 

Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee will support the Chairman in 

relation to the above meetings and chair the meetings in their absence. In the 

absence of the Vice-Chairman, a Vice-Chairman will be elected from those in 

attendance at the respective meeting, for that meeting only. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

22



Article 10 – Governance and Audit Committee 

 

10.1 Role and Function 

 

 The Council will establish a Governance and Audit Committee which will 

 undertake the following functions: 

 

 Audit Activity 

 

i) Approve the appointment of internal auditors 

 

ii) Approve the internal audit strategy and plan and monitor their 

performance 

 

iii) Review internal audit progress reports, outlining the main issues arising 

and paying particular attention to reports with limited assurance 

 

iv) Review the status of agreed internal audit recommendations to ensure 

implementation by the due date 

 

v) Receive the annual report and opinion of the Head of Internal Audit 

 

vi) Consider the appointment of external auditors 

 

vii) Consider and review the reports of external audit, including the audit 

plan, audit letter and certification of grants and returns 

 

viii) Review the effectiveness of the relationship between internal audit and 

external audit and that the value of the audit process is actively 

promoted in line with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 

 

ix) Meet in private with the internal and external auditors at least annually 

 

Risk Management 

 

x) Approve the risk management strategy and framework 

 

xi) Review the corporate risk register and other key risks (including 

partnerships) and seek assurances that appropriate mitigating action 

has been taken where necessary 

 

xii) Approve the annual report on risk management activity and consider 

the effectiveness of the Council’s overall arrangements for managing 

risk 

 

 

23

Appendix B



Governance 

 

xiii) Approve the Annual Governance Statement and ensure that in-year 

assurance statements completed by Officers properly reflect the risk 

and control environment and any actions required to improve it 

 

xiv) Approve the Code of Corporate Governance and action plan 

 

xv) Review the effectiveness of the governance arrangements 

underpinning the establishment and maintenance of key partnerships 

 

xvi) Consider the outcome of a self-assessment of the effectiveness of the 

Committee’s work (at least bi-annually) 

 

xvii) Produce a Chairman’s Annual Report on the activities of the 

Committee and present this to Full Council 

 

Regulatory Framework 

 

xviii) Review the Council’s internal control policies, such as Contract 

Procedure Rules, Financial Regulations, and any significant 

amendments or revisions to them 

 

xix) Monitor, review and amend as appropriate the thresholds and limits 

contained in the Financial Regulations Guidance Notes 

 

xx) Approve the Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Framework, 

including the Whistleblowing Policy and Anti-Money Laundering Policy 

 

xxi) Monitor, review and amend as appropriate the Council’s approved 

Treasury Management Strategy, paying particular attention to the 

inherent risks of the prevailing economic/financial climate 

 

xxii) Review the annual report on the effectiveness of the Council’s Health 

and Safety arrangements 

 

xxiii) Receive an annual report on the Council’s involvement in safeguarding 

vulnerable adults and children 

 

xxiv) Initiate inquiries on matters brought to the Committee’s attention by the 

Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Directors, Assistant Directors 

or any Council body 

 

 

 

 

24



 

Accounts and Financial Reporting 

 

xxv) Approve the annual statement of accounts and receive the external 

auditor’s Annual Governance Report on issues arising from the audit 

and the value for money opinion 

 

xxvi) Approve the Annual Revenue and Capital Outturn report, including the 

movement of reserves 

 

xxvii) Approve the Statement of Accounting Policies to be used in the 

production of the financial statements. In particular, to approve the 

underlying assumptions to be used to calculate International 

Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 pension figures in the statement of 

accounts 

 

xxviii) Review and draw the attention of the Council to issues arising out of 

the financial statements and financial reports in accordance with the 

Local Government Act 2003. 

 

Ombudsman 

 

xxix) Consider the Monitoring Officer’s annual report on the outcome of 

Ombudsman enquiries. 

 

xxx) Consider specific reports from the Ombudsman as required. 

 

Constitution 

 

xxxi) Advise and propose to Full Council amendments to the Constitution 

relating to all matters other than conduct and probity issues 

 

xxxii) Receive and consider reports from the Monitoring Officer or Chief 

Executive in relation to proposed amendments to the Constitution 

 

xxxiii) Receive and consider reports from Cabinet or any of the Council’s 

Committees which propose amendments to the Constitution 

 

xxxiv) Monitor and review the operation of the Constitution  

 

Council Companies 

 

xxxv) Approve the appointment of directors to Council-owned companies, 

subject to the Articles of Association of the company concerned 

 

 

25



10.2 Membership 

 

Full Council will appoint no fewer than nine Councillors to the Governance 

and Audit Committee. 

 

The Governance and Audit Committee will comply with the political balance 

rules in Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 

The Committee may appoint, as a Co-opted Member, an external appointee 

as a member of the Governance and Audit Committee with voting rights. 

 

10.3 Training 

 

Councillors must attend mandatory training and annual refresher training in 

order to sit and act on the Governance and Audit Committee. 

 

10.4 Proceedings of the Governance and Audit Committee 

 

 The Governance and Audit Committee must conduct its proceedings in 

accordance with the principles of Council Procedure Rules and Access to 

Information Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution, other than 

those rules which only apply to meetings of Full Council. 

 

10.5 Attendance at Meetings 

 

All Councillors have the right to attend any meeting of the Governance and Audit 

Committee. They will be permitted to speak at the discretion of the Chairman, or the 

person presiding the meeting, but the same provision must be made available to all 

Councillors in attendance. In such circumstances, no speech will exceed five 

minutes in length, unless the Chairman or person presiding uses their discretion to 

allow a Councillor to exceed this time limit. 

26



New Article – The Standards Committee  

 

Role and Function  

 

The Council will establish a Standards Committee which will: 

 

i) Promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members of South 

Kesteven District Council and all Town and Parish Councils in the 

district. 

 

ii) Develop a culture of openness, transparency, trust and confidence 

between Members and in Member and Officer relationships and embed 

a strong culture of strong ethical and corporate governance at all levels 

in the Council. 

 

iii) Advise the Council on the adoption or revision of the Councillor Code 

of Conduct. 

 

iv) Advise and recommend to the Monitoring Officer any training that may 

be necessary on matters relating to and assisting Members, Co-opted 

Members and Town and Parish Councillors on observing the Member 

Code of Conduct. 

 

v) Approve procedures for the conduct of hearings into complaints against 

Members. 

 

vi) Advise the Council on the content and requirements for codes, 

protocols or other procedures relating to standards of conduct 

throughout the Council. 

 

vii) Receive regular reports from the Monitoring Officer and assess the 

operation and effectiveness of the Councillor Code of Conduct. 

 

viii) Inform the Council of relevant issues arising from the determination of 

Code of Conduct complaints. 

 

ix) Hear and determine appeals against refusal to grant dispensations by 

the Monitoring Officer. 

 

Membership 

 

Full Council will appoint no fewer than eleven Councillors to the Standards 

Committee. 

 

27

Appendix C



The Council’s Independent Person(s) will be invited to attend and fully 

contribute at meetings of the Standards Committee. They will not be entitled 

to vote. 

 

The Standards Committee will comply with the political balance rules in 

Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 

Training 

 

Councillors must attend mandatory training and annual refresher training in 

order to sit and act on the Standards Committee and Hearing Review Panel. 

 

Proceedings of the Standards Committee 

 

 The Standards Committee must conduct its proceedings in accordance with 

the principles of Council Procedure Rules and Access to Information 

Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution, other than those rules 

which only apply to meetings of Full Council. 
 

Hearing Review Panel  

 

The Hearing Review Panel will act as a Sub-Committee of the Standards 

Committee. It will conduct its proceedings in accordance with the 

principles of Council Procedure Rules and Access to Information 

Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution, other than those 

rules which only apply to meetings of Full Council. 

 

The Hearing Review Panel will hear and determine Member Code of 

Conduct complaints referred to it by the Monitoring Officer in accordance 

with procedures approved by the Standards Committee. 

 

The Hearing Review Panel will comprise a minimum of three elected 

members of the Standards Committee. The Independent Person(s) will 

also be in attendance but will not be entitled to vote. 

 

The Hearing Review Panel will comply with the political balance rules in 

Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, unless in 

exceptional circumstances where conflicts of interest make it impossible to 

do so. 

 

28


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 5 December 2022
	4 Updates on Actions from the previous meeting
	5 Amendments to the Constitution
	Amendments to the Constitution Appendix A
	Amendments to the Constitution Appendix B
	Amendments to the Constitution Appendix C


